From: Davis, Julia

To: McRae, Angela

Cc: Tombs, Patti; Spence, Debbie; Gorni, Carlo
Subject: BIA Advisory Committee Meeting

Date: January-12-18 1:45:19 PM

Attachments: PED16247(a) - Appendix A.pdf

PED16247(a).doc

Good Afternoon Angela,

| hope this email finds you well — we have not had the opportunity to meet yet. My
name is Julia Davis and | am the Film Operations Specialist under the Tourism and
Culture Division, responsible for liaising and facilitating all Film Productions that
come to the City of Hamilton.

Our office has attended the BIA Advisory Committee Meetings in the past to give
updates and provide information on upcoming filming in addition to getting feedback
from the BIA Members around the table to improve the filming experience across the
City. | wanted to share the attached documents with the BIA Advisory Committee at
their next meeting in February if appropriate. This was a report that our office
submitted to Council in December 2017. At this time we simply wanted to share the
information with them and give the members an opportunity to review this report if
they felt appropriate.

| would also like to request attendance at the March 2018 BIA Advisory Committee
Meeting as a representative of the Tourism and Culture Division to provide an update
on filming in Hamilton, answers any questions the membership has and touch on this
report that will be shared with them in February.

Please let me know if | could be added to the agenda in March — | can advise of all
staff attending closer to the date.

| look forward to hearing from you and appreciate your assistance.
Thank You,

Julia

Julia Davis

Film Operations Specialist

Creative Industries & Cultural Development, Tourism and Culture Division
Planning and Economic Development Department, City of Hamilton

T: (905) 546-2424 ext. 2921

New for 2018

Payments for On-Street Metered parking as well as Municipal Parking Lots will be collected
by the Hamilton Municipal Parking System, located at 80 Main Street West (hours Monday
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CITY OF HAMILTON FILM
OFFICE Q3 2017 UPDATE
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HIGHLIGHTS

The first three quarters of 2017 have been positive with respect to
the film industry in Hamilton with several large scale productions
choosing Hamilton for a majority of their principal photography.
Productions such as the Lifetime TV Movie Flint starring Queen
Latifah and the Feature Film Stockholm starring Ethan Hawke,
Mark Strong and Noomi Rapace have made Hamilton their home
this year.

Open For
Business

Liuna Station was a primary location for the feature film 'Stockholm’

Productions choose to film in Hamilton for its diverse locations, Open for Business approach and great
customer service, as well as the regional tax credits offered by the Ontario Media Development Corporation
(OMDC). This important combination helps Hamilton to stay competitive and benefit from the direct spend
and economic impacts filming provides local businesses and the corporation year over year.

In addition to working with dozens of production companies this year, the Hamilton Film Office has also
worked through various avenues to grow the film industry across the city including:

e Adding 10 new locations to the OMDC (provincial) Digital Library. Hamilton area addresses now
represent 12% of all properties on the database.

e Meeting and consulting with four other municipalities (Parry Sound, Mississauga, Oakville and Barrie)
regarding processes and policies to ensure better practices.





HAMILTON CONSULATE

As part of Economic Development’s Hamilton
Consulate, staff participated in a film panel discussion
to appeal to Toronto film businesses to
expand/relocate into Hamilton. The panel included a
Hamilton Director and a Producer; a Hamilton visual
effects (VFX) specialist; a Toronto independent film
distributor; the president of Canada’s Media Fund
(CMF); and the City’s Business Development
Consultant for Creative Industries.
This panel generated:
e Coverage on BNN, The Globe and Mail and
Playback
e Broadcast reach of 14,280,000 and online reach
of 6,053,000
o Letter of intent from the Canadian
Documentary Association to host an upcoming
workshop
e Three (3) film production inquiries and
subsequent production registration and film
permit applications.

Film panel discussion, Hamilton Consulate
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HAMILTON FILM FESTIVAL

The Hamilton Film Festival runs annually and
celebrated its 12 year in 2017. The event is
internationally recognized but maintains its local
focus in order to build the industry in Hamilton
and across the Golden Horseshoe. Hamilton Film
Office staff worked with the event organizers for
enhanced programming this year, which will
increase awareness about opportunities in
Hamilton and promote business expansion.

Key Highlights

e Film Festival took place November 4™ to
12™ at the Staircase Theatre & the Zoetic
Theatre

e New components for 2017: tradeshow
component showcasing local businesses
and discussion panel about building the
industry (pre and post production) within
Hamilton

e Event sees on average over
attendees from around the world

e Supports the Lights, Camera, Hamilton
website and Facebook page which lists
and promotes local talent and crew in
Hamilton.
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5





Appendix 'A' to Report PED16247(a)
Page 6 of 10

FILM BY THE NUMBERS

The overall numbers for filming in the first three quarters of 2017 show a good year in Hamilton with the
Hamilton Film Office issuing 282 location film permits, seeing 714 days of activity and over $6 million direct
spend into the Hamilton community.

Many City of Hamilton Departments have benefited from filming with revenues of $372,541.92 to date in
2017 which includes expenditures on film permits, road closures, municipal parking, Paid Duty Officers and
location rental fees for parks and City-owned buildings. Outside of these City of Hamilton revenues, the
remainder of the direct spend by production companies has been allocated to location/private property
rentals, hotel stays, donations to local community groups, purchase of products or services from Hamilton
businesses, car/truck rentals, catering, etc.

. . Induced
Direct City .
Dates Economic
Spend Revenue
Impact

January 1 to
September | $6,135,945 | $372,541.92 | $10,247,028
30, 2017

Permits by Ward

-
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Still from the series ‘The Handmaid’s Tale’

Of the productions that have been welcomed to the City, some have been feature films and TV Movies
however TV Series account for the greatest type of production annually within Hamilton. TV Series such as
Taken, Designated Survivor, The Handmaid’s Tale and Murdoch Mysteries have all used Hamilton to create
their stories. As of September 30" 2017, 87 productions registered with the Hamilton Film Office with 37

being TV Series.

Production Type Number Registered % of Total
TV Series 37 42%
Commercials 14 16%
Feature Film 10 11%
Documentary 8 9%
Other (i.e. Short, Web Series) 6 7%
Student Production 4 5%
TV Movie 4 5%
Music Video 2 2%
Still Commercial Photography 2 2%
1 1%

Reality
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HAMILTON FILM OFFICE SERVICES

The Hamilton Film Office staff work to provide sensational service to the film industry as well as the
residents and businesses across the City of Hamilton. Our 1.5 staff respond to over 5,000 emails, phone
calls and walk-in inquiries on an annual basis and work diligently to balance the needs of the film
industry with those of the Hamilton community.

In addition to liaising with the film industry, community and other City Departments, staff work to
increase the positive cultural and economic benefits of the film industry. The team works to promote
local property owners and businesses that can support the film industry, while also connecting
production companies with local Business Improvement Areas and community groups. To continue to
grow the film sector staff work to foster business development by showcasing Hamilton as a vibrant
community that can support this fast-paced dynamic industry.

City of Hamilton Film Office Staff work closely with the Ontario Media Development Corporation and
other municipalities to ensure best practices are being followed and engage on the updates and changes
to the film industry. The City of Hamilton is one of few municipalities that charges a nominal
administration fee for each location permit that is issued.

Hamilton Toronto | Mississauga | Ottawa | Calgary Burnaby
F (per individual location $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 (annual business
ee permit) license fee)
Staffing 1.5 FTEs 8 FTEs 2.5 FTEs 2 FTEs 3 FTEs 3 FTEs

Murdoch Mysteries at Whitehern Historic House & Garden





PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Staff continue to track, measure, analyse and implement solutions for
work related to film permitting to ensure the needs of our two
primary customers, residents/businesses and the film industry, are
being met. As was reported in 2016, 8% of film permits generated
complaints to the Hamilton Film Office. Staff have worked to
implement continuous improvement initiatives and through various
efforts have seen a 25% decrease in the total number of complaints
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n
stemming from filming. In 2016, staff reported that the most number contl nuous

of complaints were in regards to Parking — this number dropped to

zero the first 3 quarters of 2017.

Hallmark TV ovie ‘Home for the Holidays’

BETTER PRACTICES

As was reported in 2016, the Hamilton Film
Office implemented new limitations on
parking in high density population areas to
work to mitigate concerns from residents.
This continuous improvement initiative has
severely decreased the number of parking
complaints since inception. Additionally,
City of Hamilton staff have implemented a
Code of Conduct that production
companies are now required to sign off on
and ensure their teams follow. This
reiterates appropriate behaviours while
filming in the Hamilton Community.

Improvement

Parking
Incivility
Loss of Business
No Notification
Film Fatigue
Overnight Filming
Road Access
Other

5% of permits issued generated complaints

RPWRFRL O WUVOIWNO
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IMPROVED TECHNOLOGY

In July 2016 the Hamilton Film Office transferred all production registrations and permitting processes to
the AMANDA system. A few benefits to transitioning to AMANDA:

e Improves the user experience allowing for more efficient input and accountability

e Enables staff to effectively manage information which includes increased accuracy with tracking
of feedback and inquiries

e Compiles statistics in real-time in order for staff to report on key performance indicators in a
timely manner

e Engaged other City Departments seamlessly in the permit review workflow process through the
Collaboration Module with the ability to provide documented feedback and have necessary
clarification discussions

ENHANCING COMMUNICATION WITH BIAs

Hamilton Film Office staff recently implemented more
streamlined communication and connection between the
BIAs and production companies:
e June 13, 2017 - Hamilton Film Office staff
attended the Business Improvement Area

com m “ “ ity & Advisory Committee meeting to provide an update

on the permitting and filming process
B“siness e Film Office Staff and BIAs agreed on an enhanced
communication protocol. This protocol involves

0 h including the BIA Executive Directors or

“treac Chairpersons on an email response to the
production company immediately after receiving
the permit application. Implementation ensures
timely communication to BIAs and that all
participating parties have appropriate contact
information. This protocol was implemented on
June 14, 2017.

e August 8, 2017 - Staff attended the August BIA
Advisory Committee meeting to follow up with the
improvement and obtain additional feedback
regarding filming notification

e BIA attendees noted that there were no concerns
with the improved process and that for the 2
months it had been in place, it was working well.

Staff continues to regularly attend the BIA Advisory
Committee Meetings to consult with the representatives
around the table and solicit ongoing feedback.
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The purpose of this Report is to provide Council with an update on film permit statistics and Hamilton Film Office activities and trends from Q1 to Q3 2017 and provide an overview of the net impact of the filming industry in Hamilton in relation to City revenues collected.  This Report will also provide an update on an improved communication process between the Film Office and the Business Improvement Areas (BIAs).

For a more detailed overview of the activities related to the Film Office including Open for Business and continuous improvement initiatives, filming statistics and community and business communication/outreach, please refer to the City of Hamilton Film Office Q3 2017 Update, attached as Appendix ‘A’ to Report PED16247(a).

Council Direction:

On December 7, 2016, at the General Issues Committee Meeting, City of Hamilton Film Office staff provided a Film Office Review Information Report to Hamilton City Council at which time the following direction was provided:

That staff be directed to include in the 2017 Film Office Review presentation, the net impact and the economic impact that the film industry has on the City of Hamilton.

Additionally there was direction at the May 24, 2017, General Issues Committee Meeting, respecting City of Hamilton Information Sharing with BIAs:


(a)
That the Film Office ensure that the policy of sharing information with BIAs about upcoming movie/television shoots within BIA boundaries is communicated at least two weeks in advance of the filming.

Information:


Since the inception of the Hamilton Film Office, the film industry has established a strong presence in Hamilton and is an important segment of the Creative Industries.  The first three quarters of 2017 saw the issuance of 282 film permits and 714 days of filming activity across the City.  As a result, the City of Hamilton received $372,541.92 in direct revenues including a wide variety of permit and rentals fees such as film permit fees, park rental fees, road closure fees, City-owned facility rentals etc.

Breakdown of the City of Hamilton’s Revenue Q1 to Q3 2017:


Lane and road closures for filming = $10,873.45

Film permit fees = $14,679.04

Park location rental fees = $17,309.35


Municipal parking revenues from film = $22,503.50

City-owned facility rental fees = $56,755.35

Paid Duty Police Officers hired by film productions - $254,421.23

Total Q1 to Q3 revenue to City of Hamilton - $372,541.92

Direct Spend and Economic Impact


In addition to the City’s revenues, film production companies reported that from January 1 to September 30, 2017 they spent $6,135,945 directly to Hamilton businesses, organizations and residents, which is on track with previous year’s numbers.  This includes location rental fees, products and services purchased from local Hamilton businesses, donations to BIAs and other community organizations, hotel stays and other accommodations, catering services, etc.  The industry standard used to calculate induced economic impact takes the direct spend and multiplies it by 1.67.
 Using this calculation, the induced economic impact for the first three quarters of 2017 is $10,247,028.15.

Communication of Filming to Business Improvement Areas


In June 2017, a review of the communication policy regarding filming within Business Improvement Areas (BIAs) was undertaken to identify opportunities for improvement and prevent lack of or misinformation pertaining to communication about filming within BIA boundaries.

While the Hamilton Film Office continues to work with production companies to provide notification of planned filming as far in advance as possible, it is not always feasible to provide two weeks’ notice ahead of filming within a BIA boundary.  Often times the City of Hamilton Film Office does not receive more than a few business days’ notice in regards to a film permit application.  As an alternative solution, to satisfy the need for more streamlined communication, City of Hamilton Film Office staff has implemented a policy that involves connecting both parties (the production company and the Executive Director or BIA Chairperson) via email as quickly as possible after receiving a film permit application within a BIA jurisdiction.

This solution was developed and presented by City of Hamilton Film Office staff at the Business Improvement Area Advisory Committee meeting on June 13, 2017, where all BIA Representatives at the table agreed on a trial to see if communication improved.  City of Hamilton Film staff returned to the August 8, 2017, to continue discussions and obtain feedback.  All BIA members present agreed that this solution was working well and it has now been implemented as Hamilton Film Office Policy.

Appendices and Schedules Attached


Appendix ‘A’ to Report PED16247(a) - The City of Hamilton Film Office Q3 2017 Update
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� Nordicity, The Economic Contribution of the Film and Television Sector in Canada, July 2013, 103.
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to Friday 8:30am to 4:30pm). An estimate of costs will be provided to you via email from
the Hamilton Municipal Parking System once your application has been approved.
Payments must be received prior to your filming date in order for your film permit to be
issued. Approved permits are required to be displayed on every vehicle within the
approved parking area and parking meter bags must be used to reserve on-street metered
spaces (these will be provided to you upon receipt of payment).



